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CARR-1265
1112 Main St., Hampstead

Summary:

On 8 April 1910, the stockholders of the First National Bank of Hampstead met in the
Fireman’s Hall, in what was likely the first meeting afier incorporation, to elect officers. E.M.
Bush was chosen as president, William A. Abbott as Vice President, and Daniel Shamberger as
cashier. These three were appointed a committee to find temporary quarters for the new bank.
They had probably already arranged for more permanent quarters, as on 2 July 1910 a deed was
executed from William A. Abbott to the Bank for this lot. At the same time that arrangements
were being made for the land, the Bank was probably also pursuing plans for a building.
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Maryland Historical Trust HISTORID PROPERTIES
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE __yes _ mo

1. Name {indicate preferred name)

historic First National Bank of Hampstead

and/or common

2. Location

1112 South Main Street

street & number — not for publication

city, town Hampstead —X_ vicinity of congressional district
state Maryland county Carroll
» - -
3. Classification
Category OCwnership Status Present Use
- district- — " "public —___occupied —_agriculture — museum
_X building(s) ____ private —X_ unoccupied —__commercial ___park
—— structure — both — work in progress —— educational ____private residence
—_ site Public Acquisition Accessible — . entertainment —religious
~—. Object — in process ____yes: restricted _ X government — scientific
— being considered —~ yes: unrestricted —— industrial ~—_ transportation
_X not applicable _4 po ____military ____other:

4. owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Carroll County Bank & Trust Company
street & number P. 0. Box 1100 . - telephomne no.:
city, town Westminster state and zip code Maryland 21158

S5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Courthouse Annex liber 1969
street & number 55 N. Court Street folio 539
city, town Westminster state Maryland

6. Representation in Emstmg Historical Surveys

title MHT Inventory Form CARR~1265
date February 1986 . -federal _X state ___county ____local
o B
pository for survey records MHT

city, town Crownsville state Maryland




7. Description Survey No. CARR-1265

Condition Check one Check one

_X excellent —___ deteriorated ____ unaitered __“original site

— good ___ruins _ X altered —__moved date of move
— fair — unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its

various elements as it exists today.

See Attached



8. Significance Survey No.  CARR-1265

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ___ landscape architecture___ religion
_~.1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic — conservation — law ____ science
1500-1599 ____ agriculture —___economics —literature — sculpture
__ 1600-1699 _ X architecture — education — military — social/
—1700-1799 ___ art —__ engineering —__ music humanitarian
1800-1899 ____ commerce — exploration/settlement ___ philosophy — theater
3 1900~ —__ communications — industry — politics/government _._ transportation
—__invention — other (specify)
Specific dates 1910 Builder/Architect Frank E. & Henry Davis
check: Applicable Criteria: _ A _ B C D
and/or

Applicable Exception: A B C D E F G

Level of Significance: _ national _ state _ local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a geﬁgral statement of history and
support. \

See Attached




9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No.. CARR-1265

See Attached

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property .29444 A,
Quadrangle name - Halpstead Quadrangle scale
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Verbal boundary description and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/titte Kenneth M. Short, Historic Planner

organization Carroll County Planning & Develop date May 18, 1999

street & number 225 North Center Street telephone (410) 386-2145

city or town Westminster state Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.
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The First National Bank of Hampstead is located at 1112 Main Street in Hampstead at
the southwest corner of the intersection of Main Street and Shiloh Avenue. The bank building
faces east toward Main Street and is a 2 story three bay by five bay pressed brick structure of
common bond with a pressed metal cornice with modillians and a hip roof that appears to be
slate and has copper finials.

The east elevation has a granite foundation and sandstone quoins, sills and lintels.
There is a center entrance with glazed double doors and a fan light that has a wrought iron
grill. The sandstone door surround has Doric pilasters and a pediment. There is a 1/1 double
hung sash to each side of the doorway. All of the first story sash originally had bars covering
them, but these have since been cut out. The windows have splayed brick jack arches with
projecting keystones. Between the first and second stories is a stone plaque with the ghosts of
lettering that read "First.National.Bank". The second story center bay has paired 1/1 sash
with a 1-light transom. Each end bay has a 1/1 sash.

The south elevation foundation is stuccoed and scored to look like ashlar. The first
story is five typical 1/1 sash, while the second story is 1/1 sash in the west bay between the
west center and center bays and in the east center bay. The west elevation foundation is also
stuccoed and scored. The first and second stories have no quoining. The first story has paired
1/1 sash with a plain sandstone sill and lintel in the south bay. The second story has typical
second story sash in the north and south bays. There are two interior brick chimneys in the
center.

The north elevation also has a foundation that is stuccoed and scored. The first story
has five typical 1/1 sash. The west end also has a doorway with a five panel door and a 1-
light transom. There is a wood porch with three steps leading up to this doorway. The second
story has four typical 1/1 sash located in the east bay between the east center and center bays
between the center and west center bays and in the west bay.

The cellar of the bank was not accessible. The first story has a vestibule with a tile
floor containing black and white tiles in a Greek fret pattern and a marble baseboard. There
is half paneling and glazed double doors that lead into the banking room. All of the
woodwork is of varnished oak.

The east room or banking room has a tile floor along the east and north sides that also
has a Greek fret border and rose colored roses in a white field inside the border. The rest of
the room has carpeting over a wood floor. There was a teller’s cage that followed the tile
floor but this was removed a long time ago. Around the tiled section of the banking room is a
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marble baseboard and half paneling. The window and door architraves have a broken field
with an ogee at the break and an ogee at the inter edge. Moved to elsewhere, the vestibule is
only the height of the front doors with the ceiling set below the level of the fan light. The
room has a pressed metal ceiling with a paneled Suffolk and a cove cornice. The southeast
corner of the room was closed off at a later date. The walls of this enclosure have plain wood
veneered panels below a chair rail. Centered on the west elevation and projecting into the
room is the vault which is about ten feet high and has a large full cornice on the southeast and
north sides of the vault. Inside the vault is a large safe that is shaped like a barrel set on its
side. The safe is painted black with gold trim and has three doors on its front that are
numbered but there is no maker’s name. To the north of the vault is a paneled wall that is
only as high as the vault. This wall has a doorway with one light. On either side of the door
are pilasters with Ionic capitals. The doorway leads to a narrow passage back to the center
room. On the south side of this passage are two doors that lead to closets and appear to be an
original configuration. The closets have beaded board ceiling. On the south side of the vault
is a wood paneled enclosure 8 feet high with a cornice. The east side of this enclosure has a
glazed door that leads to a small room with a beaded board ceiling and beaded board west
wall. There is a wood shelf along the west wall. The south wall is also glazed above two
panels. This enclosure is divided in half with the western end being a closet that has a door on
the south elevation. South of this enclosure is a passage with a doorway at the west end of it
that leads to the center room.

The center room probably functioned originally as a Board of Directors room. Both
the north and south elevations each have two windows. The ceiling is identical to that in the
east room. In the middle of the west elevation is a door that leads to a small vestibule. The
north side of this vestibule has a doorway that cannot be opened but leads underneath of the
stairway. On the south side of this vestibule is a beaded board partition about 6 feet high with
a four panel stall door and an original bathroom behind it. The bathroom has a cast iron sink
and a porcelain toilet marked "The James Robertson Man’f’g Co. Baltimore, Md. eclipse
trademark".

The second story can only be reached from the exterior. There is a vestibule in the
northwest corner with a straight run of stairs along the west wall. The stairway is enclosed
and at the south end there is another landing. A passage runs along the south side of the
second story from this landing at the west to the east. There is a cross passage that runs
north/south near both the east and west ends. There are two rooms at the east end and four
rooms that run along the north side of the passage to the west of these two rooms. The doors
all have five lined panels and are natural. All of the doorways from the passage to the rooms
have transoms over them. The architraves all have an ogee at the inter edge.
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The northwest chamber is presently a kitchen and appears it always functioned this
way. It has a narrow chimney in the southwest corner for a stove and the east wall has a
cupboard that is built of beaded-edge vertical boards and is probably original. The southwest
chamber is a bathroom and has a 9-light sash on the south elevation set high to get light from
the passage. It has a claw foot tub; a corner sink in the northwest and a new toilet. The west
center chamber has a small vestibule on the south side of it with two closets on the west side of
this vestibule. There are doors on both the east and west elevations of this chamber leading to
the adjacent rooms. The east center chamber also has doors on the east and west elevations to
lead to the adjacent rooms. The northeast chamber has grained woodwork and is the only
room on the second story that has this feature. It is also the smallest room on the second
story. It is also papered and the wallpaper has silver airplanes and clouds and appears to date
from the late 1930's or the 1940's.

Contributing resources 1.
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On 8 April 1910, the stockholders of the First National Bank of Hampstead met in the
Fireman’s Hall, in what was likely the first meeting after incorporation, to elect officers. E.M.
Bush was chosen as president, William A. Abbott as Vice President, and Daniel Shamberger as
cashier. These three were appointed a committee to find temporary quarters for the new bank.
They had probably already arranged for more permanent quarters, as on 2 July 1910 a deed was
executed from William A. Abbott to the Bank for this lot. At the same time that arrangements
were being made for the land, the Bank was probably also pursuing plans for a building. Thus on
23 September 1910, it was reported:

Plans for the bank and office building to be erected at Hampstead, for the
Hampstead National Bank, were completed by Architects F. E. and HR. Davis, of
Baltimore. It will be two stories and a basement high, of brick, stone and steel.
The interior will be finished in white marble, with tile floors and up-to-date mantel
work. All the wood fixtures will be polished oak and mahogany.

Frank E. and Henry R. Davis were brothers whose major architectural work, like their office, was
in Baltimore. Among their buildings were the Pine Street Police Station, ¢.1871, the Odd Fellows
Hall, 1891, and the State Normal School on Lafayette Square. The Hampstead Bank was a late
work for the firm, which stopped practicing in 1914.

The plans must have been satisfactory to the Bank, because on 7 October 1910 it was
reported that:

The First National Bank of Hampstead let the contract for its new office building,
which is to be erected at the corner of Main Street and Shiloh avenue, the
successful of six bidders being Eline Bros, of Littlestown, Pa., at the price of
$10,692. The building will be two stories, one with the bank on the first floor, and
offices on the second floor, and will be 28 by 50 feet, of brick and limestone. Eline
Bros. contract to complete the building in 130 days.

There are no other records to indicate whether the work was completed as required, but the
Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps show the building complete by August 1911. At that time there
was a windmill behind the bank, probably for pumping water from the well to the building. One
thing about the completed building was different, however. The second story was never finished
as offices, but instead was made into an apartment, possibly for the cashier. The up-to-date
mantel work was apparently also struck from the plan, perhaps due to cost.

In March 1933, in the midst of the Great Depression when most banks were closed, newly
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elected president Franklin D. Roosevelt declared a national bank holiday and had congress pass
the Emergency Banking Act to deal with the crisis. The act required most banks to get
authorization from the Treasury before reopening, refusing authorization to those in a shaky
financial position. Those that were allowed to re-open could get loans from the Reconstruction
Finance Corporation, a federal lending agency; following the bank holiday, the First National
Bank of Hampstead never re-opened. It went into receivership and the building was sold at
auction on 14 February, 1938. In 1958 it was purchased by W. Leslie Wheeler and was used as a
town hall by the town of Hampstead. It also served as a branch of the Carroll County Public
Library from 1962 to 1969, and housed an antiques store and a clock shop most recently. The
building has been purchased by the town of Hampstead for use as a police station, and an addition
is to be made to it.

The First National Bank of Hampstead is a remarkably well preserved bank building.
Ironically, most banks have undergone modernizations on the interior that destroy most historic
features, but because the bank went under during the Depression, this never happened. Despite
the changing uses, neither the first story, which is only missing the teller’s cages, or the second
story, which has only had the kitchen modernized, have been greatly altered. As a result, the
Hampstead Bank is an excellent example of small banking institutions for the early twentieth
century. The quality of design and construction have always made it a landmark for the town, as
well.




CARR-1265 Significance

Geographic Organization:
Piedmont

Chronological/Developmental Period:
Industrial/Urban Dominance A.D. 1870-1930

Historic Period Themes:
Architecture

Resource Type:
Bank

Known Design Source:
Frank E. Davis and Henry R. Davis

On 8 April 1910, the stockholders of the First National Bank of Hampstead met in the Fireman’s
Hall, in what was likely the first meeting after incorporation, to elect officers. E.M. Bush was
chosen as president, William A. Abbott as Vice President, and Daniel Shamberger as cashier.
These three were appointed a committee to find temporary quarters for the new bank. They had
probably already arranged for more permanent quarters, as on 2 July 1910 a deed was executed
from William A. Abbott to the Bank for this lot. At the same time that arrangements were being
made for the land, the Bank was probably also pursuing plans for a building. Thus on 23

" September 1910, it was reported:

Plans for the bank and office building to be erected at Hampstead, for the
Hampstead National Bank, were completed by Architects F. E. and H.R. Davis, of
Baltimore. It will be two stories and a basement high, of brick, stone and steel.
The interior will be finished in white marble, with tile floors and up-to-date mantel
work. All the wood fixtures will be polished oak and mahogany.

Frank E. and Henry R. Davis were brothers whose major architectural work, like their office, was
in Baltimore. Among their buildings were the Pine Street Police Station, c.1871, the Odd Fellows
Hall, 1891, and the State Normal School on Lafayette Square. The Hampstead Bank was a late
work for the firm, which stopped practicing in 1914.

The plans must have been satisfactory to the Bank, because on 7 October 1910 it was reported
that:
The First National Bank of Hampstead let the contract for its new office building,
which is to be erected at the corner of Main Street and Shiloh avenue, the
successful of six bidders being Eline Bros, of Littlestown, Pa., at the price of
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$10,692. The building will be two stories, one with the bank on the first floor, and
offices on the second floor, and will be 28 by 50 feet, of brick and limestone. Eline
Bros. contract to complete the building in 130 days.

There are no other records to indicate whether the work was completed as required, but the
Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps show the building complete by August 1911. At that time there
was a windmill behind the bank, probably for pumping water from the well to the building. One
thing about the completed building was different, however. The second story was never finished
as offices, but instead was made into an apartment, possibly for the cashier. The up-to-date
mantel work was apparently also struck from the plan, perhaps due to cost.

In March 1933, in the midst of the Great Depression when most banks were closed, newly elected
president Franklin D. Roosevelt declared a national bank holiday and had congress pass the
Emergency Banking Act to deal with the crisis. The act required most banks to get authorization
from the Treasury before reopening, refusing authorization to those in a shaky financial position.
Those that were allowed to re-open could get loans from the Reconstruction Finance
Corporation, a federal lending agency; following the bank holiday, the First National Bank of
Hampstead never re-opened. It went into receivership and the building was sold at auction on 14
February, 1938. In 1958 it was purchased by W. Leslie Wheeler and was used as a town hall by
the town of Hampstead. It also served as a branch of the Carroll County Public Library from
1962 to 1969, and housed an antiques store and a clock shop most recently. The building has
been purchased by the town of Hampstead for use as a police station, and an addition is to be
made to it.

The First National Bank of Hampstead is a remarkably well preserved bank building. Ironically,
most banks have undergone modernizations on the interior that destroy most historic features, but
because the bank went under during the Depression, this never happened. Despite the changing
uses, neither the first story, which is only missing the teller’s cages, or the second story, which has
only had the kitchen modernized, have been greatly altered. As a result, the Hampstead Bank is
an excellent example of small banking institutions for the early twentieth century. The quality of
design and construction have always made it a landmark for the town, as well.
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CARR-1265
1112 Main St. Hampstead
First National Bank of Hampstead

CHAIN OF TITLE

William F. Wheeler, Robert Carroll William F. & Robert I. 7 6 Nov LWS 745 Deed Fee | 1. 1025 Main

I. Wheeler & W. Gibbs Wheeler, and W. Gibbs 1989 1179 Simple St. plus

McKenney, pers. rep. of McKenney 2. 100 S Main

Olive M. Wheeler 3. 103 S Main
4. 636 ac
5.1058.
Main

Morris R. & Rose Greenspan | Baltimore William Leslie & Olive M. Carroll 1 Oct 1952 | EAS 85 | Deed Fee | $10.00 13,028

(wh) City Wheeler (wf) 214 Simple sq. ft.

Herbert W. Cantor & wf Baltimore Motris R.& Rose Greenspan | Baltimore 31 Dec EAS 211 246 Deed Fee | Isidor & wife

Ferle heirs of Isidor City (wf) City 1951 Simple dec’d wills Balto
City Les 240-74
$5.00 13,028 sq
ft.

Arthur J. Mathews & wife Carroll Isidor M. Cantor Baltimore 22 Oct EAS 187 590 Deed Fee | $1.00 13,028 sq

Gladys M. City 1945 Simple ft

Lee C. Leister Carroll Arthur J. & Gladys M. Carroll 6 May LDM 176 54 Deed Fee | $1.00 13,028 sq

Matthews (wf) 1941 Simple ft

Hower L. Twigg & wf Carroll Lee C. Leister Carroll 6 May LDM 176 | 53 Deed Fee | $1.00 13,028 sq

Henrietta R. and Arthur J. & 1941 Simple ft.

Gladys M. Mathews
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1112 Main St. Hampstead
First National Bank of Hampstead

CHAIN OF TITLE

Frank I. Duncan, Baltimore Homer L. Twigg Arthur I. ? 18 Mar LDM 168 76 Deed Fee | 10 Mar. 1933

receiver of first national bank | County Matthews 1938 Simple Thomas C. Hill

of Hampstead apptd receiver of
First National
Bank-resigned &
Duncan took over
$4550.00 13,028
sq ft.

William A. & Maggie B. Carroll First National Bank of U.S. Corp | 2 July ODG 115 67 Deed Fee | $1,000 13,028 sq

Abbott (wf) Hampstead 1910 Simple ft.

Annie E. Lamotte Carroll William A. Abbott ? 30 April BFC 562 Deed Fee | $3501 1/8 ac

1891 12
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FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF HAMPSTEAD c. 1910

Hampstead private

The architecture of the First National Bank displays the
Classical Revival style that was popular for bank design in
the early 20th century. While many banks were builtwin this
style, this building is one of the best surviving examples
in Carroll County. The Classical Revival features include
its brick facade with stone ornamental details, prominent
first story with jack-arch window lintels and keystones,
pedimented door frame with pilasters and arched fan light,
quions, bracket cornice and hipped roof. During the mid-
20th century, the building served as Hampstead's town hall

and library.




Survey No. CARR-1265

. . Magi No.
Maryland Historical Trust
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE __yes _ no
1 - Name {indicate preferred name)
historic First National Bank of Hampstead, Maryland
and/or common ROY'S Never Stop Clock Shop
2. Location
street & number 1112 South Main Street — not for publication
city, town Hampstead — vicinity of congressional district gixth
state Maryland county  Czrroll
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use .
— district- — public XX occupied ——_ agriculture — _ museum
XX building(s) XX private —  unoccupied _XX commercial —— park
— structure — both — work in progress — educational —— private residence
— site Public Acquisition Accessible —_entertainment —— religious
" __ object —— in process XX_ yes: restricted —— government —— scientific
—=— being considered ——_yes: unrestricted —— industrial ___transportation
XXnot applicable __ po ___ military ___ other:

4- ownel‘ Of Pl’opel’ty (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name William L. Wheeler

street & number 1100 South Main Street - telephone no.: 239-8765

city, town Hampstead state and zip code Maryland 21074

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. = Carroll County Courthouse Annex liber 214
street & number 55 North Court Street folio g5
city, town Westminster state Maryland

6. Representation in Existing =istorical surveys

title None

~date , ——federal ___state ____county ___ local

depository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description survey No. (ARR-1265

Condition
____ excellent
§§_good
__fair

Check one Check one |
_._deteriorated __XXunaltered XX original site v
—— ruins ___ altered ____ moved date of move

____ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

SUMMARY: The First Natiomal Bank building is a excellent example of the
Classical Revival style that was popular in early 20th century
small-town banks in Carroll County. The Classical Revival features
in this structure include its brick facade with stone ornamental
details, prominent first story with jack-arch window lintels with
keystones, pedimented door frame with pilasters and arched fan
light, guoins, bracket cornice, and hipped roof.

DESCRIPTION:

The First National Bank building is located at 1112 South Main
Street on the southwest corner of the intersection of Main
Street and Shiloh Road in Hampstead. The structure was built
in the early 20th century by the Hampstead Bank and used the
popular Classical Revival bank design.

The building is two stories -tall with a 3—bay,mainvfaéade. It

has a rectangular plan (28' by 50') with the sides being >-bays
long. The Classical Revival features highlight the architectural
characteristics of the structure, especially on the main facade,
with its pedimented door frame with pilasters, a triangular
broken pediment, arched fanlight with decorative ironwork, and
double door entrance. The first story windows on all facades
have flat arch lintels with keystones. The corners are

trimmed with quoins and a wide cornice with dentil brackets
exists under the hipped roof. The interior retains the tile
floor, solid oak counters; and-pressed-metal ceilings "from the
original bank design. '



8.  Significance - _ Survey No. CARR-1265

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
—— prehistoric __ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning landscape architecture____religion
-~ 1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic —__conservation — law — science
— 1500-1599 ____ agriculture ___economics — literature — sculpture
—1600-1699 ___ architecture — education — military ____social/
—1700-1799 ___ art —___engineering —__ music ‘ - humanitarian
—1800-1899 _ XX commerce — exploration/settiement ___ philosophy ___theater
XX 1900 — communications — industry —— politics/government  ___-_ transportation
— invention —._other (specify)
Specific dates Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: XA B _ C D
and/or

Applicable Exception: _ A B C D E F G

Level of Significance: _ national __ state X local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

SUMMARY: The architecture of the First National Bank displays the Classical
Revival style that was popular in bank design during the early 20th
century. While many banks were built in this style, this building
is one of the best surviving examples in ‘Carroll County.

HISTORY: First National Bank of Hampstead purchased this property on July
2, 1910, from William A. Abbott. The bank building was apparently
built soon thereafter. They operated out of this building from
the time of its construction until it was forced to close on March
6, 1933, during the depression. The building and most of its
flxtures were purchased at public auction by Homer Lee Twigg on
February 14, 1938. The building was later sold to A. J. Matthews.
The Wheeler family, who rented the first story to the Town of
Hampstead for town offices from 1950 to the 1970's, owned the
bulldlng durlng the mid-20th century. The building also housed
the branch of the Carroll County Public Library from 1962 to 1969.




9. Major Bibliographical References ' Survey No. CARR-1265

"Town Landmark Survives' The Carroll County Evening Sun July 30, 1977.
Carroll County Land Records

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property
Quadrangie name Quadrangle scale
UTM References 4o NOT complete UTM references .
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Verbal boundary description and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county s code

state code : county code

11. Form Prepared By

namertitte  Joe Getty

organization Carroll County Department of Planning . date February 1986

N wg ,‘f; ;
street & number 225 North Center Street telephone 848-4500
city or town Westminster state Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of

individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438

PS-2746
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